
1 
 

 
      CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

REMOTE 
April 26, 2021 
CIP Meeting 

7:00 PM  
 

City Council Meeting 
7:30 PM  

 
Zoom Details 

Please click the link below to join the webinar for both meetings: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81347304503 

Or One tap mobile : 
US: +13126266799 Or Telephone: 

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
US: +1 312 626 6799  Webinar ID: 813 4730 4503 

International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kb8vROW3Ph 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
2. LATE FILE: COMMITTEE ITEMS  

• COMM240_04_27_2020    Memo re: SOI Submission Info 
• COMM293_02_08_2021    Ltr. From Jane Snow 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT   
4. MAYOR'S COMMENT  

CONSENT 
AGENDA  

NOTE: ALL ITEMS LISTED UNDER CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE ENACTED BY ONE 
MOTION. THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS. IF DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED, THAT ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND 
CONSIDERED SEPARATELY. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• April 12, 2021                     (Approve) 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
• COMM320_04_26_2021 Newburyport Retirement Board COLA notice    (R&F) 
• COMM321_04_26_2021 Newburyport Water Resource Protection District map  (R&F) 

117 Indian Hill St property 
• COMM322_04_26_2021 Appraisal Report117 Indian Hill St     (R&F) 
• COMM323_04_26_2021 117 Indian Hill St - outlet stream photo and aerial photo  (R&F) 
• COMM324_04_26_2021 Cover Ltr  DeRosa Environmental     (R&F) 

 
7. TRANSFERS 

•  TRAN095_04_26_2021 DPS Recpts Res for Approp $35K to Highway Fuel & Oil $35K (B&F) 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81347304503
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kb8vROW3Ph


2 
 

8. APPOINTMENTS 
• APPT241_04_26_2021 Bonnie Sontag 21 Smith St. Fruit St. Hist. Comm 

 
5/31/2024 
 

 
 
ALL ITEMS NOTED BELOW ARE REMOVED FROM THEIR RESPECTIVE COMMITTEES WITH THE 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA  

 
Budget & Finance 

 
• TRAN090_04_12_2021   Water Retained Earnings $155K to Watershed Land Acquisition $155K  

                               with supporting documents 
• TRAN091_04_12_2021    HWY Streetlights $2,646 to Essex North Shore Tech School $2,646 
• TRAN092_04_12_2021    Overlay Surplus Account $99,010 to ASR Revaluation $99,010 
• TRAN093_04_12_2021    GEN EVENT COORDINATOR $4K to AUD MISC SUPPLIES $500 

                                           and to GEN SUPPLIES-OFFICE $3,500 
• TRAN094_04_12_2021   RRFA-Paid Parking Fund $5,550 to PKG Part Time Enforcement  

                                           Officer $4,500 and to PKG Clothing allowance $1,050 
• ORDR243_04_12_2021 FONT Gift Acceptance with supporting letter 

 
 

Public Utilities 
 

• APPT240_04_12_2021 William Creelman  129 Merrimac St Water/Sew 
 

4/30/2023 
 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
9. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS – CITY SOLICITOR – Department Head Contracts 

 
10. MAYOR'S UPDATE 

 
11. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
12. FIRST READING APPOINTMENTS 

 
13. SECOND READING APPOINTMENTS 

 
• APPT239_04_12_2021 Kevin Hunt 14 Tenth St. Veterans Agt. 4/1/2022 

 
 

14. ORDERS 
• ORDR244_04_26_2021 Charter Amendment Home Rule Petition 
• ORDR245_04_26_2021     Municipal Aggregation Order 
 

15. ORDINANCES 



3 
 

• ODNC068_01_27_2021  Late File Zoning Amend Sec VI-C re: # of residential structures per lot 
(As Amended) 2nd Reading 

• ODNC072_03_29_2021 Parks COVID extend 2nd  Reading 
• ODNC075_04_26_2021 Safety Zone Designation Merrimac St.  

 
16. COMMITTEE ITEMS 

 
Ad Hoc Committee on Economic Development 

In Committee: 
• COMM262_08_31_2020  Gasbarro Ltr re: Awareness 

 
Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Park and COTW 

In Committee: 
• COMM261_08_31_2020  Proposed Timeline, Waterfront 
• ORDR227_12_14_2020 Appropriate NRA funds for RFP award 

 
Budget & Finance 
In Committee: 

• COMM311_03_08_2021 Cllr Tontar letter re: KP Law Legal Opinion on Council Salaries 
• COMM314_03_29_2021  FY2022-FY2026 Capital Improvement Program Submission (COTW) 
• COMM319_04_12_2021     Memo to Council from Councillor Zeid re: CIP 
• TRAN090_04_12_2021   Water Retained Earnings $155K to Watershed Land Acquisition $155K  

                               with supporting documents 
• TRAN091_04_12_2021    HWY Streetlights $2,646 to Essex North Shore Tech School $2,646 
• TRAN092_04_12_2021    Overlay Surplus Account $99,010 to ASR Revaluation $99,010 
• TRAN093_04_12_2021    GEN EVENT COORDINATOR $4K to AUD MISC SUPPLIES $500 

                                           and to GEN SUPPLIES-OFFICE $3,500 
• TRAN094_04_12_2021   RRFA-Paid Parking Fund $5,550 to PKG Part Time Enforcement  

                                           Officer $4,500 and to PKG Clothing allowance $1,050 
• ORDR243_04_12_2021 FONT Gift Acceptance with supporting letter 
• ODNC074_04_12_2021 Council Salaries with Supporting Memo  

 
Education 
      In Committee: 
• COMM240_04_27_2020    Memo re: SOI Submission Info 
• COMM273_10_13_2020    Ltr of Non-Support from Mayor on Acts of 1987 
• COMM293_02_08_2021    Ltr. From Jane Snow 

 
General Government 

In Committee:  
 
License & Permits 

In Committee: 
• ODNC047_01_27_2020 General Ordinance - Short Term Rental Units Rules 
• COMM229_02_24_2020    Ltr re: Implementation of Short-Term Rental Ordinance 
• APPL022_03_08_2021   Banter Barber & Clothier-Pool Table App. 
• APPL024_03_29_2021 Plum Island Classic Cars      

 
Neighborhoods & City Services 
 In Committee: 
• COMM234_03_30_2020    Ltr from Newburyport Livable Streets March 11, 2020 



4 
 

• COMM285_01_27_2021    Memorandum from Councillor Christine Wallace 
• COMM299_02_08_2021   LATE FILE Phillips Dr. Neighborhood Committee Ltr.   

  
Planning & Development 

In Committee: 
• COMM215_01_13_2020    Ltr re: Colby Farm Open Space Beautification 
• ODNC046_01_27_2020 Zoning Amendment - Short Term Rental Units Definition 
• COMM231_03_09_2020 Ltr re: Short-Term Rental Ordinance 
• ORDR196_07_13_2020 Open Space and Recreation Plan 2020 (COTW) 
• ODNC073_03_29_2021 Late File Zoning Amendment Storage Warehousing= 

 
Public Safety 

In Committee:                                                                           
• COMM216_01_13_2020   Ltr re: Ban the Use of Glyphosate 
• APPT165_04_13_2020 Dr. Robin Blair  18 Market St. Board of Health       4/30/2023 
• COMM243_05_11_2020 Ltr from Jane Rascal re: NMMCD 
• ORDR200_07_30_2020 List of Crosswalks Amended 
• COMM282_01_27_2021 Ltr from Jim McCarthy re: Sign Proposal     
• COMM283_01_27_2021 Ltr from Jim McCarthy-speed limit 
• APPL023_03_08_2021  LATE FILE Event App The Moving Wall 
   

Public Utilities 
In Committee: 

• COMM290_02_08_2021 Falmouth Broadband Feasibility Study (full text in Clerk’s office)  
• COMM292_02_08_2021 Memo - Electricity Aggregation Program  
• COMM295_02_08_2021 Best Best & Krieger Small Cells Order  Annual Meeting   
• COMM296_02_08_2021 Natoa FCC Small Wireless Facilities Rules Compliance Guide  
• APPT240_04_12_2021 William Creelman  129 Merrimac St Water/Sew 

 
4/30/2023 
 

 
Rules 

In Committee: 
• COMM220_01_27_2020   Proposed City Council Rule 9F 
• ORDR170_02_24_2020    Amendment Council Rules 2020 (COTW) 
• ORDR171_02_24_2020    Amendment to Rule 17B (COTW) 
• ORDR239_02_8_2021      Council Rule 7 and 10B 

 
17. GOOD OF THE ORDER  

 
18. ADJOURNMENT  

 



R ICHARD B. )ONES 

CITY CLERK 

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT 
MASSACHUSETTS 

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

NEWBURYPORT CITY HALL 

60 PLEASANT STREET e P .O . Box 550 

NEWBURYPORT, MA 01950 
TEL: 978-465-4407 e FAX: 978-462-7936 

*REMOTE* Public Hearing conducted by the Newburyport City Council at 7:00pm on April26, 202 1 
relating to the Capital Improvement Program. 

There is a full copy of the Capital Improvement Program available for inspection online at 
https://www .cityofnewburvport.com/fy21 -25cip 

Zoom details are as follows: 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.usli/81347304503 
Or One tap mobile : 

US: +13126266799 
Or Telephone: 

Dial : 
US: +1 312 626 6799 or +1 929 205 6099 

Webinar ID: 813 4730 4503 



CONSENT AGENDA 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

REMOTE 
April12, 2021 

7:30PM 
City Council Meeting 

Zoom Details 
Please click the link be low to join the webinar: 

https ://us02web.zoom. us/j/86493680558 
Or One tap mobile : 

US: +13126266799 Or Telephone: 
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

US: +1 312 626 6799 Webinar ID: 864 9368 0558 

1. CALL TO ORDER The City Council Pro Tempore President, Barry Connell called the meeting to order 
at 7:30pm and asked the City Clerk, Richard B. Jones to call the roll. The following Councillors answered 
present, Shand, Tontar. Vogel, Wallace, Zeid, Devlin, Khan, Lane. McCauley, and Connell. 10 present, 1 
absent(JE), using Zoom as a platform. 

2. LATE FILE ITEMS 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Connie Preston, L 8 Atwood Street 
Jane Snow, 9 Cot11n Street 
Jennie Donahue, 18 Cherry Street 

4. MAYOR'S COMMENT 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

NOTE: ALL ITEMS LISTED UNDER CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE ENACTED BY ONE 
MOTION. THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS. IF DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED, THAT ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND 
CO SIDERED SEPARATELY. 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• March 29. 2021 (Approve) 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
• COMM318_04_ 12_202 1 Ltr from Mackin re: IFS Zoning Issue 
• COMM319 04 12 2021 Memo to Council from Councillor Zeid re: CIP 

7. TRANSFER S 
• TRAN090 04 12 2021 

• TRAN091 04 12 2021 
• TRAN092 04 12 2021 
• TRAN093 04 12 2021 

• TRAN094 04 12 2021 

Water Retained Earnings $155K to Watershed Land Acquisition $155K 
with supporting documents 

HWY Streetlights $2,646 to Essex North Shore Tech School $2,646 
Overlay Surplus Account $99,010 to ASR Revaluation $99,010 
GEN EVENT COORDINATOR $4K to AUD MISC SUPPLIES $500 
and to GEN SUPPLIES-OFFICE $3,500 

RRF A-Paid Parking Fund $5,550 to PKG Part Time Enforcement 
Officer $4,500 and to PKG Clothing allowance $1,050 

(R&F) 
(B&F) 

(B&F) 

(B&F) 
(B&F) 
(B&F) 

(B&F) 

1 



8. APPOINTMENTS 
• APPT239 04 12 2021 

• APPT240 04 12 2021 

Kevin Hunt 

William G. 
Creelman 

14 Tenth St. 

129 MetTirnac St. 

Removed from Consent Agenda at the request of Councillor Tontar. 

Veterans Agt. 

Water/Sewer 
Comm. 

4/ l/2022 

4/30/2023 

ALL ITEMS NOTED BELOW ARE REMOVED FROM THEIR RESPECTIVE COMMITTEES \VITH THE 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA: 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended by Cow1cillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Tontar. Roll call vote. 10 
yes 1 absent (JE). Motion passes. 

9. MAYOR'S UPDATE 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
REGULAR AGENDA 

Motion to receive and file by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Tontar. Roll call vote. 10 yes, l absent 
(JE). Motion passes. 

10. PRESENTATION ON RESIDENTIAL ELECTRICAL AGGREGATION, .Michael Strauss, Ph.D, 

11. COMMUNICATIONS- None 

1.2. FIRST READING APPOINTJ\rlENTS 
• APPT240 04 12 2021 William G. 

Creelman 
129 Merrimac St. Water/Sewer 

Comm. 
4/30/2023 

Motion to refer to Public Utilities by Councillor Tontar, seconded by Councillor Shand. Roll call vote. 10 yes, 
l absent (JE). Motion passes. 

13. SECOND READING APPOINTMENTS 
• APPT236_03_29_202l Michael Nary 

• APPT237 03 29 2021 Rich Traister 

• APPT238 03 29 202 1 Walter 

20 Riverview Dr. 

325 Merrimac St. 

364 Merrimac St. 

Sp.Police Ofc. 

Disabilities 
Comm. 

Harbor 
Lesynski Comm. 

3/31/2024 

4/ 112024 

Motion to approve collectively by Councillor Zeid , seconded by Councillor Ton tar. Roll call vote. l 0 yes, 1 
absent (JE). Motion passes. 

2 



14. ORDERS 
• ORDR243_04_12_2021 FONT Gift Acceptance with supporting letter 

Motion to refer to Budget & Finance by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Tontar. Roll ca ll vote. l 0 
yes, 1 absent (JE). Motion passes. 

15. ORDINANCES 
• ODNC072_03_29_2021 Parks COVID extend P1 Reading 

(continued from March 29, 2021) Motion to approve l 51 reading by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor 
Devlin pending. 
Motion to approve l 51 reading by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Devlin. Roll call vote. 10 yes, 1 absent 
(JE). Motion passes. 

• ODNC074_04_ 12_2021 Council Salaries with Supporting Memo 
Motion to refer to Budget & Finance by Councillor Tontar, seconded by Councillor Khan. Roll call vote. 9 yes, 
l no (SZ), 1 absent (JE). Motion passes. 

• ODNC068_01_27_2021 Late File Zoning Amend Sec VI-C re: #of residential structures per lot 
(As Amended) 

(Continued from March 29, 2021) Motion to amend Sec VI-C (2)a.iv.(f) to $40 per square foot by Councillor 
McCauley, seconded by Councillor Lane pending. 
Motion withdrawn by Councillors McCauley and Lane. Motion to amend Sec VI-C (2)a.iv.(f) to $20 per square 
foot by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor Shand. Roll call vote. 10 yes, 1 absent (JE). Motion passes. 
Motion to approve amended 151 reading by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor Lane. Roll call vote. 9 
yes, 1 no (SZ), 1 absent (JE). Motion passes. 

16. COMMITTEE ITEMS 

Ad Hoc Committee on Economic Development 
In Committee: 

• COMM262 08 31 2020 Gasbano Ltr re: Awareness 

Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Park and COTW 
In Committee: 

• COMM261_08_31_2020 Proposed Timeline, Waterfront 
• ORDR227 _12_14_2020 Appropriate NRA funds for RFP award 

Council Connell asked Andy Pmt, Director of Planning, to give a brief update on the Park Expansion project. 
Andy Port explained that Sasaki Associates are reviewing the overall design of the park expansion including 
the bike path and boat access points. 

Budget & Finance 
In Committee: 

• COMM311_ 03 _ 08 _ 2021 Cllr Tontar letter re: KP Law Legal Opinion on Council Salaries 
• COMM314_ 03 _ 29 _ 2021 FY2022-FY2026 Capital Improvement Program Submission (COTW) 

Education 
In Committee: 

• COMM240 04 27 2020 Memo re: SOl Submission Info - - -
• COMM273_10_13_2020 Ltr ofNon-Support from Mayor on Acts of 1987 
• COMM293 02 08 2021 Ltr. From Jane Snow 

General Government 
In Committee: 

3 



License & Permits 
In Committee: 

• ODNC047 01 27 2020 - - -
• ODNC067 01 27 2021 
• COMM229 02 24 2020 - - -
• APPL022 03 08 2021 
• APPL024 03 29 2021 - - -

General Ordinance - Short Term Rental Units Rules 
License to Occupy Outdoor Property Ch. 12-1 
Ltr re: Implementation of Short-Tenn Rental Ordinance 
Banter Barber & Clothier-Pool Table App. 
Plum Island Classic Cars 

Neighborhoods & City Services 
In Committee: 
• COMM234_03_30_2020 Ltr from Newburypott Livable Streets March 11 , 2020 
• COMM285 01 27 2021 Memorandum from Councillor Christine Wallace - - -
• COMM299 _02_08_2021 LATE FILE Phillips Dr. Neighborhood Committee Ltr. 

Planning & Development 
In Committee: 

• COMM215_01_13_2020 Ltr re: Colby Farm Open Space Beautification 
• ODNC046 _ 0 l_ 27 _ 2020 Zoning Amendment- Shott Term Rental Units Definition 
• COMM231 03 09 2020 Ltr re: Short-Tetm Rental Ordinance - - -

• ORDR196_07 _ 13_2020 Open Space and Recreation Plan 2020 (COTW) 
• ODNC073_03_29 _2021 Late File Zoning Amendment Storage Warehousing= 

Public Safety 
In Committee: 

• COMM216 01 13 2020 - - -
• APPT 165 04 13 2020 - - -
• COMM243 05 11 2020 - - -
• ORDR200 07 30 2020 - - -
• COMM282 01 27 2021 - - -

• COMM283 01 27 2021 - - -
• APPL023 03 08 2021 

Public Utilities 
In Committee: 

Ltr re: Ban the Use ofGlyphosate 
Dr. Robin Blair 18 Market St. Board of Health 
Ltr from Jane Rascal re: NMMCD 
List of Crosswalks Amended 
Ltr from Jim McCatthy re: Sign Proposal 
Ltr from Jim McCarthy-speed limit 
LATE FILE Event App The Moving Wall 

• COMM290_02_08_2021 Falmouth Broadband Feasibility Study (full text in Clerk's office) 
• COMM295_02_08_2021 Best Best & Krieger Small Cells Order Annual Meeting 
• COMM296_02_08_2021 Natoa FCC Small Wireless Facilities Rules Compliance Guide 
• COMM292_02_08_202 1 Memo- Electricity Aggregation Program 

Rules 
In Committee: 

• COMM220 0 1 27 2020 - - -
• ORDR170 02 24 2020 
• ORDR171 02 24 2020 - - -

• ORDR239 02 8 2021 

17. GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Proposed City Council Rule 9F 
Amendment Council Rules 2020 (COTW) 
Amendment to Rule 17B (COTW) 
Council Rule 7 and 1 OB 

Councillor Zeid - Thursday, 6pm CIP meeting (DPS). 
Councillor Khan - Ordinance Review Wednesday at 6:30pm 
Councillor Connell - Vaccination clinic was professional and cheerful. 

4/30/2023 

4 



18. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn at 8: 53pm by Coucnillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Khan. Roll call vote. 10 yes, 1 absent 
(JE). Motion passes. 

5 



COMMUNICATIONS 



(jJoa nf 9-f em liers 
:Joscpli Spa u&fing, Cfwitma 11 

'/cffrry Cutter. '(/ice·Cfiaimlcl/1 ... .,....., - . 

!New6uryport <}(ftirement CBoartf 

16 Vnicorn Street 
:N'ew6uryport, ~ 01950 

) t{e;r_ander 'K.ra1'cfiuf(, C8oanf./1ppl)intee 
t£tfian 5\1 aun ing, Ci(Y _j! udi tor 
Jofm :Moa~ ~ayor Appointee 

April12, 2021 

City Council President Jared Eigerman 

City Councilors 
City Hall, 60 Pleasant Street 
Newburyport, MA 01950 

COMM320 04 26 2021 

Laune cBurton, 'E.zycutit-'t <Director 
La1lriL~Burton@5V~w6uryport'I(ftirement.org 

'Yefepfione 
(918) 465·6619 
'1lfX 
(978) 462-4042 

Re: Retirement Board Meeting for the Purpose of Voting on COLA for Retirees 

Council President and Members of the City Council: 

Per the provisions of Section 51 of Chapter 127 of the Acts of 1999, we are hereby notifying you that the 

Newburyport Retirement Board will be holding a ZOOM meeting on Thursday, May 27,2021 at 9:00A.M .. 

At this meeting the Retirement Board will address the election of paying a COLA of up to 3% to the 

Retirees for FY 2022, pursuant to Chapter 32, Section 103 and Chapter 127, Section 51 ofthe Acts 

of 1999, 

ZOOM - Meeting 10: 725 756 3329 



UPPER
ATRICHOKE
RESERVOIR

MERRIM
ACK RIVER

LOWER
ATRICHOKE
RESERVOIR

ARTIC HOKE RIVER

DEER
ISLAND

CARR ISLAND

EAGLE
ISLAND

Updated 2/23/15 db

Water Resource Protection District
City of Newburyport

Indian Hill
Reservoir

Well #1

Well #2

Legend
Town Boundary

Watershed Features
Lakes, Rivers
Reservoirs
Streams
Newburyport Municipal Wells

!!Þ Community Public Water Supply - Surface Water

!!Þ Community Public Water Supply (West Newbury)
Artichoke Watershed Boundary

Zone A
Zone B
Zone C
Zone I
Zone II
Bartlett Pond Watershed Boundary
Bartlett Pond Zone A
Bartlett Pond Zone B & C

DATA SOURCES: 
The Bartlett Pond watershed data was supplied by the Merrimack Valley Planning Commission.  
Property parcels were digitized from municipal Assessors maps (1"=200' scale).  All other 
hydrography data for this map was supplied by the Executive Office of Environmental Affairs and 
MassGIS. 
DISCLAIMER
Data and information is provided by the GIS system, with the understanding that it is not guaranteed 
to be correct or complete.  All data is subject to change and periodic updates.  The City of Newburyport 
makes no claims, representations or warranties, express or implied, concerning the validity, reliability or 
the accuracy of the GIS data and GIS data products furnished by the City, specifically including the 
implied or expressed validity of any uses of such data.

Watershed Zones:
    Zone A: (a) The land area between the surface water source and the upper boundary of the bank;
    (b) the land area within a 400 foot lateral distance from the upper boundary of the bank of a Class A
    surface water source, as defined in 314 CMR 4.05 (3) (a); and (c) the land area within a 200 foot
    lateral distance from the upper boundary of the bank of a tributary or associated surface water body.
    
    Zone B: The land area within one-half mile of the upper boundary of the bank of a Class A surface
    water source, as defined in 314 CMR 4.05 (3) (a), or edge of the watershed, whichever is less.
    However, Zone B shall always include the land area within a 400 foot lateral distance from the upper
    boundary of the bank of the Class A surface water source.
    
    Zone C: The land area not designated as Zone A or Zone B within the watershed of a Class A water
    source as defined in 314 CMR 4.05 (3) (a).
    
    Zone I: The zone encompassing the land area which falls within a 400-foot radius from the municipal
    well shaft.
    Zone II: The area of an aquifer which contributes water to a municipal well under the most
    severe pumping and recharge conditions that can be realistically anticipated (180 days of
    pumping at safe yield with no recharge from precipitation), as defined in 310 CMR 22.00.
    This area shall be considered to be a 1/2-mile radius from the well shaft until such time that
    the Zone II has been delineated by an approved hydrologist.

0 2,500 5,0001,250 Feet

1:30,000 1 inch = 2,500 'orScale=

4

gvining
Callout
117 Indian Hill Street watershed property

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

ksullivan
Typewritten Text
COMM321_04_26_2021



 

 

RESTRICTED APPRAISAL REPORT 

 

Date:    March 15, 2021 

 

To:  Maggie Brown, Project Manager, Essex County Greenbelt Association and 

the City of Newburyport, Massachusetts (“Clients”) 

 

From:    James Monahan, Senior Advisor, LandVest, Inc. (MA C.G. #3481) 

 

Re:  Appraisal Report – 6.1+ acres of Residentially-Zoned Vacant Land at 117 

Indian Hill Road, Town of West Newbury, Essex County, Massachusetts 

 

Attachments:  Appraiser Certification, Deed & Legal Description, Orders of Condition & 

Plans, Assessor’s Card 
 

 

This Restricted Appraisal Report is intended to summarize my opinions and conclusions regarding 

the current market value of a residentially-zoned, vacant land tract located at 117 Indian Hill Road 

in the Town of West Newbury, Massachusetts (hereinafter referenced as the “subject property”).  

 

The intended use of this USPAP-Compliant Restricted Appraisal Report is limited to the above- 

cited Clients. The rationale for how the appraiser arrived at the opinions and conclusions set forth 

in this report may not be fully understood without additional detailed information that is retained 

in the appraiser’s work-file.  

 

1. PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION AND APPRAISAL SCOPE  

 

Subject Property:  

 

The following table summarizes the subject property and its 2021 property tax assessment 

according to Town of West Newbury Assessor’s records.   

 
Address Map/Lot Area Assessed Value 

(Land) 
Assessed Value 

(Buildings) 
Assessed Value 

(Extras) 
Total Assessed 

Value 

117 Indian Hill Rd. 18-9C 6.1± ac. $265,200 $0 $0 $265,200 

 

Based on the F.Y. 2021 mil rate of $14.88/$1,000, the annual tax load amounts to approximately 

$3,946.  It is noted that the subject property is not currently enrolled in MGL Chapter 61 and no 

penalties are assessable upon transfer or conversion of use.     

 

ksullivan
Typewritten Text
COMM322_04_26_2021



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 2 - 
 

Legal Description:  Essex County Registry of Deeds Book 37769, Page 382, dated August 20, 
2019 – see copy in Appendix.  

 
Client:  Maggie Brown, Project Manager, Essex County Greenbelt Association, Inc. 

and Authorized Representatives of the City of Newburyport, Massachusetts 
 
Intended Use:  Acquisition planning  
 
Intended Users:  Authorized Representatives of the Essex County Greenbelt Association, Inc., 

and the City of Newburyport, Massachusetts  
 
Effective Date of Valuation:   March 9, 2021 (Inspection Date) 
 
Property Rights Appraised:   Fee Simple interest   
 

Type of Value:   

The opinion of value estimate set forth herein is Market Value, the major focus of most real 

property appraisal assignments. For the purposes of this appraisal, the definition of Market Value 

aligns with the definition outlined in Treasury Regulation 1.170A-1 (c)(2):  

 

 “The Fair Market Value is the price at which the property would change hands between a 

willing buyer and a willing seller, neither being under any compulsion to buy or sell and 

both having reasonable knowledge of relevant facts.”  

 

USPAP also requires that certain items be included in every appraisal report. Among these items, 

the following are directly related to the definition of market value: 

 Identification of the specific property rights to be appraised. 

 Statement of the effective date of the value opinion. 

 Specification as to whether cash, terms equivalent to cash, or other precisely described financing 

terms are assumed as the basis of the appraisal. 

If the appraisal is conditioned upon financing or other terms, specification as to whether the 

financing or terms are at, below, or above market interest rates and/or contain unusual conditions 

or incentives. The terms of above-or below-market interest rates and/or other special incentives 

must be clearly set forth; their contribution to, or negative influence on, value must be described 

and estimated; and the market data supporting the opinion of value must be described and 

explained.  

 

To conclude the highest and best use of the Property we have evaluated, in the sequence shown 

below, four criteria, paying particular attention to the emphasized phrase above: 



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 3 - 
 

1. Legally permissible uses result from such limitations as those imposed by private deed restrictions, 

zoning, building codes and environmental regulations. 

2. Physically possible uses were considered in terms of the size, shape, land area and topography. 

Also considered were the availability of public utilities and age, condition and functional utility of 

the improvements. 

3. Financially feasible uses were those uses that meet the conditions imposed by the two previous 

criteria and which may be expected to produce a positive financial return. 

4. Maximally productive use is that use which will provide the highest rate of return or value to the 

land. 

Scope of Work:  

On-site property inspection with Clients; review of publicly-available records; review of pertinent 

legal documents; land use/regulatory review; site planning review; approval history review; 

summary highest and best use analysis; valuation via Sales Comparison (appraisal) Approach. This 

Restricted Appraisal Report is prepared and delivered in accordance with the Uniform Standards 

of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP 2020-2021 Edition). 

 

Extraordinary Assumptions: 

- It is assumed that the subject property is free and clear of any hazardous conditions, including but 

not limited to soil contamination and subsurface fuel storage. 

- It is further assumed that the subject property is in full compliance with all applicable zoning and 

environmental regulations.   

- The highest and best use conclusion outlined in this report is based on an extraordinary 

assumption that a previously-approved and now lapsed Order of Conditions stipulating mitigating 

measures to be completed in the construction of driveway access to the buildable upland portion 

of the subject site could be re-approved/re-extended in accordance with the original design plans.      

 

Hypothetical Conditions: 

- No hypothetical Conditions were assumed in the completion of this assignment.   

 

Sale and Listing History:  

The subject property was not offered publicly on the open market as of the effective valuation 

date.  It most recently sold (to the current owner) on 8/20/19 following open market exposure 

and the prior sale was in 2013.           

 

2. TITLE:  

The subject property was conveyed most recently on 8/20/19 from Sandra Roulier, Successor 

Trustee of the Flying W Realty Trust to John J. O’Connor (see Essex B. 37769, P. 382 – copy in 



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 4 - 
 

Appendix).  Consideration reflected in the deed was $150,000.  The subject property is referenced 

as Lot 2 on a plan of land entitled “Subdivision of Land Prepared for Flying W Realty Trust, Sandra 

Roulier, Trustee”, 111 Indian Hill Street, prepared by Reid Surveyors, Lynn, Massachusetts, dated 

March 26, 2014.  The plan is recorded at Plan Book 444 as Plan #20 (Essex County Plan Room).   

The legal description includes no mention of easements or encumbrances.  The acreage reflected 

on the plan if record is 264,821 square feet (6.1+ acres).     

   

3. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  
The locus, current configuration and existing condition of the subject property is depicted on a 

scaled, GIS-format compiled plan entitled Base Plan on the following page of this report.   This 

plan incorporate the property’s surveyed boundaries superimposed on a 2019 aerial ortho-photo 

of the property, including the immediate neighborhood context.   

The subject property is generally located on the southerly side of Indian Hill Street in the 

southeastern section of the Town of West Newbury – roughly ¾ miles to the west of Interstate 95 

at Exit 56.  Indian Hill Street is a public collector road in West Newbury.  There are no curbs, 

sidewalks or municipal utilities and local properties rely on private wells and septic systems.  

Overhead utilities are located along road frontage.   

 

Northeasterly view along Indian Hill Road frontage.                    Typical interior wooded upland view.   

The property assumes a highly irregular configuration with a maximum depth of roughly 1,310+ 

feet and a lot width ranging from 110+ feet to 310+ feet.  The total contiguous road frontage (per 

the survey plan) amounts to 293.75+ feet.   There are no established access roads and curb cut 

entry options along the road frontage are limited due to wetlands, topography and sight distance.  

The site is moderately wooded in mixed hardwoods (red oak and black locust) and evergreen 

woodlands and the understory is relatively light.  The topography consists of a range of small hills 

and promontories and areas of what appear to be previously-disturbed/graded soils.   



117 Indian Hill Street
18-9C

6.1 ±Ac

293'
Indian Hill Street

68'

59'

49'

39'

59'

49'

39'

68'

29'

68'

59'

59'

49'

49'
39'

78'

68'

59'

49'

49'

49'

29'

This plan is conceptual only and is not
represented as an engineered plan.

Base Plan Orthophotograph

°

Credits: 2020 Imagery from
Nearmap Imagery
map service.

LEGEND

0 100 20050 Feet

Project Number: MA3316-CG
Date: 03/08/21

Greenbelt - Indian Hill Street 
West Newbury,  MA

Do
cu

me
nt 

Na
me

: M
A3

31
6-C

G 
ort

ho Scale: 1 " = 100 '

Subject Property - 6.1 ±Ac
Adjacent Properties
Wetlands
Perennial Streams
Intermittent Streams
Contours (ft)

Notes:



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 6 - 
 

Elevations along the road frontage range from about 26-46 feet and overall on-site elevations 

range from 25+ feet in easterly wetlands to 68+ feet in the extreme southwesterly tip of the 

property.   

On site wetlands delineations and detailed topographic surveys were completed as part of 

previous permitting.  

The northeastern portion of the property includes a broad network of perennial streams and 

associated freshwater wetlands that traverse the width of the site.  A significant wetland crossing 

(involving two branches of a perennial-flow stream) is required to access the rear interior upland 

portion of the property (see photo below).   

 

The engineering plans accompanying the Notice of Intent/Order of Conditions call for the use of 

an 18’ open-bottom box culvert to traverse this stream with a new entry driveway.  The plans call 

for Riverfront impacts of 23,525 s.f.; flood storage loss of 1,777 c.f with 2,580 s.f. in 

compensatory storage; and, the filling of approximately 1,350 s.f. of freshwater wetland with 

2,025 s.f. of replicated wetlands.   

The proposed entry driveway spans some 900+ feet and provides access to the most suitable 

building site atop a wooded knoll at an elevation of approximately 50 feet.  This portion of the 

site offers attractive southwesterly views to adjacent conservation land and the setting is quite 

private.       

4. HIGHEST AND BEST USE ANALYSIS  

The following analysis of Highest and Best Use involves consideration of existing land use 

regulations, any reasonably probable modifications to those regulations, the subject property’s 

physical characteristics, and economic demand for the physically and legally permissible uses of 



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 7 - 
 

the subject property type.  This analysis also accounts for prevailing market trends, established 

neighborhood development patterns, and aesthetic issues impacting market demand.   

In consideration of significant wetland constrains, the highest and best use of the subject 

property is illustrated on a set of plans (revised through 7/26/16) accompanying an original Order 

of Conditions (DEP File #78-658) calling for development of the subject property as a single 

residential building lot of 6.1+ acres.   It is noted that the original Order of Conditions from the 

West Newbury Conservation Commission issued on August 11, 2016 expired on August 11. 2019.  

The Order was then extended on May 6, 2019 until August 11, 2020.  It has since expired and it is 

a special assumption of this appraisal that the now expired Order of Conditions could be 

extended subject to the same set of performance conditions.   

This is a fairly significant extraordinary assumption in terms of its bearing on the subject 

property’s market value.  If these previous approvals cannot be feasibly extended, the property’s 

highest and best use would be reduced to limited-utility/accessory acreage.       

However, in consideration of the property’s detailed level  of on-site engineering and approval 

history, there is a reasonable basis for the reliance of this extraordinary assumption.   

Assuming development as a single residential building lot, the valuation will first consider the 

property’s value at a “retail” or finished level and then all costs required to extend driveway 

access and complete all necessary wetland replication in compliance with an extended Order of 

Conditions – will be estimated and deducted from the retail level value to yield the property’s “as 

is” value as of the effective valuation date.        

Valuation Approaches Developed:  

The Sales Comparison Approach was employed as the primary appraisal methodology in the 

valuation of the subject property.  The Cost Approach is not applicable as the property is vacant 

and the Income Capitalization Approach is not applicable as the market for the subject property 

type is not driven by non-resident investors. 

     

5. VALUATION 

 

Sales Comparison Approach – Comparable Sales Overview 

 

The Market Approach or Sales Comparison Approach is a method whereby recent sales of 
comparable properties are analyzed and compared to the subject property by making 
adjustments for perceived differences. The market approach is based on the theory of exchange, 
which implies that a comparison of similar properties has been made by the potential purchaser, 
and that the purchaser would not pay more than the cost of acquiring a property with the same 
utility. 
 



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 8 - 
 

Whenever there is a sufficient quantity of recent comparable sales in the local market, the Sales 

Comparison Approach is the most reliable and preferred valuation method. In researching the 

subject market for appropriate sales, I was able to gather a sufficient number of comparable 

transactions in order to justify a well-supported valuation of the subject property in accordance 

with the previously-described highest and best use conclusion. 

a. Comparable Sales Overview 

In the course of this valuation, I conducted a search for closed, arm’s length sales involving fully- 

approved, vacant, residential building lots in both West Newbury and reasonably proximate 

North Shore residential markets.  My market survey focused primarily on larger lots of 3-10 acres 

with additional emphasis on lots requiring above average buyer-borne access and utility costs.   

The following table provides a general overview of recently-closed sales involving similarly-sized 

vacant residential building lots in West Newbury and competing markets from 2018 - present.    

 

Residential Lot Sales Overview – W. Newbury and Proximate Markets 

Sale Location 
Sale 
Date 

Sale 
Price 

Acreage $/Acre Comments 

L1 
Bachelor St. W. 

Newbury 
4/25/18 $194,000 6.26 $30,990 

Infill lot with 400 feet of road frontage, 
approved septic design and Order of 
Conditions.  Sold for just under asking 
price of $199,000.  397 days on market 
prior to sale.    

L2 
8A Crane Neck 
St. W. Newbury 

5/4/18 $248,000 5.59 $44,364 

Infill lot on dead end road in very scenic 
setting.  Abuts conservation land.  
Approved 3 BR perc.  Excellent view 
potential but limited lot utility.  Listed at 
$275,000.  757 days on market prior to 
sale.  

L3 
58 Ash St., W. 

Newbury 
5/5/20 $282,000 3.51 $80,341 

Infill lot in excellent market location in W. 
Newbury.  Included approved 4BR septic 
plan and seller had completed $25K in 
clearing and site work prior to sale.  Listed 
at $289,900 and sold after just 4 days.    

L4 
409 Middle St., 

W. Newbury 
8/16/19 $285,000 3 $95,000 

This is a corner lot on Middle Street. The 
mostly level lot is seasonally protected by 
a wooded border along the two lengths of 
road frontage but on-site privacy is only 
average, given the lot’s size.  The interior 
was cleared and a driveway was roughed 
in.  Septic plan sold with property.  Lot was 
listed at $295,000 and sold after 493 days 
on market.     



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 9 - 
 

Sale Location 
Sale 
Date 

Sale 
Price 

Acreage $/Acre Comments 

L5 
61 Elm Street, 

Newbury 
3/4/21 $330,000 7.18 $45,961 

Densely wooded road-front lot is located 
between Governors Academy and Triton 
Regional H.S.  Southerly slopes with 
building area roughly 400 feet in from road 
frontage.  Excellent location but high site 
costs.  Lot was listed for over 4 years prior 
to sale.   

L6 
25 Larch Row, 

Wenham 
12/31/19 $365,000 4.37 $83,524 

Infill lot in very attractive market setting 
on Larch Row near town center.  Mostly 
wooded lot with extensive wetlands and 
Rivers Act jurisdiction.  Approved perc test 
for 6BR septic.  Sale price in this prime 
market location reflects high costs to build 
long access drive and extend utilities (costs 
assumed by buyer).  Listed at $395,000 
and sold after 398 days on market.     

Indicated Averages: $237,000 4.98 $47,530   
 

It is noted that in addition to the 6 above-outlined closed sales, the listing and sale history of the 

subject property was also considered and analyzed.  The subject property was originally listed on 

11/1/16 at $295,000.  Over the next three years it went through a series of extensions and 

expirations and was then re-listed on 5/13/19 at an asking price of $195,000.  It sold 

approximately 3 months later for $150,000 ($24,590/acre).  This listing history and final sale price 

is considered valid data as the property saw extensive open market exposure over a 963 day 

listing period prior to a negotiated sale.   

I have also considered the fact that as of the effective valuation date, MLS records indicated that 

there were no actively-listed residential building lots on the market in the entire Town of West 

Newbury.   

Based on my review of the above-outlined sales and consideration of the subject property’s sale 

history, it is my opinion that the “as is” market value of the subject property as of March 9, 2021, 

subject to the extraordinary assumptions outlined earlier, was as follows:  

$165,000 

(ONE HUNDRED SIXTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS) 

It is noted that the above-outlined market value opinion is based on an estimated “retail” market 

value of $295,000 less an estimated $130,000 in extraordinary site costs.   

Estimated Exposure Time 

USPAP requires that an appraisal include an estimate of exposure time, which is the estimated 

length of time that the property interest being appraised would have been offered to the market 

prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at the concluded market value as of the 

effective valuation date.   



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 10 - 
 

Given the complete lack of competing lot inventory as of the effective valuation date, the subject 

property would likely garner above-average market attention by private buyers seeking a large 

acreage residential construction opportunity in an established conservation setting in the West 

Newbury market.  If offered on the open market at a list price within 10% of appraised value, I 

would expect an offer would be accepted and purchase and sale agreement would be signed 

within 1-4 months.  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 11 - 
 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 

 

Appraiser Certification 

Pertinent Deeds and Legal Descriptions 

Orders of Condition & Plan  

Assessor’s Card 

 

 

  



117 Indian Hill Street, West Newbury 
Restricted Appraisal Report  

- 12 - 
 

 

CERTIFICATION OF VALUE 
 

I hereby certify that: 

 
1. I have made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report. 

 
2. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements of fact and the opinions contained in 

this report are true and correct. 

 
3. The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported 

assumptions and limiting conditions, and my personal, unbiased professional analyses, 
opinions, and conclusions. 

 
4. I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, and I 

have no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved. 

 
5. My compensation is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value or direction in 

value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value estimate, the attainment of a 
stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event. 

 
6. This appraisal was not based on a requested minimum valuation, specific valuation or 

approval of a loan. 

 
7. My analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in 

conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of 
Professional Practice of The Appraisal Institute, as well as the Uniform Standards of 
Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute.  I am currently licensed (in good 
standing) as a Certified General Appraiser in Massachusetts (CG #3481). 

 
8. The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to 

review by its duly authorized representatives. 

 
9. No one provided research assistance to the primary appraiser signing this report. 
 
10. I have not appraised the subject property in the three years prior to the acceptance of this 

assignment.   
 

  

Appraiser:             James E. Monahan       Date:     March 15, 2021      

 

                              ______________________        

    







gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line



117 Indian Hill Street watershed property 

Outlet stream connecting Indian Hill Reservoir to Artichoke Reservoir 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text
COMM323_04_26_2021



117 Indian Hill Street

04/10/2012

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line

gvining
Line



February 23, 2021 

BY ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Maggie Brown 
Land Conservation Project Manager 
Essex County Greenbelt Association 
82 Eastern Avenue 
Essex, MA 01929 

maggie@ecga.org 
Phone: (978)-768-7241 x25 

COMM324 04 26 2021 

PO Dor /16 
J~cuney Ma.s.sac~~US&S 

USA 

RE: ASTM 1527-13- Phase 1: Environmental Site Assessment 

Vacant Land 

Dear Ms. Brown, 

117 Indian Hill Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 

This letter and report provide a summary of findings regarding environmental matters at 
the vacant, forested land property located at 117 Indian Hill Street in West Newbury, 
Massachusetts (Figures 3 and 4). At your request, our office (DeRosa Environmental 
Consulting, Inc.), conducted a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment consistent with 
the ASTM 1527-13 protocol and guidance documents. The purpose of this investigation 
was to identify any recognized environmental conditions (RECs) as defined in the ASTM 
Standard , and the report includes an investigation of the history of the site and land use 
of surrounding properties. The scope of work included a thorough site inspection of the 
properties, existing structures, and built spaces; personal interviews with persons 
knowledgeable about the site; as well as the review of pertinent federal, state, and local 
files and records. All work intends to meet the standard of "all appropriate inquiry" 
established as part of the ASTM standard protocol for a Phase I: Environmental Site 
Assessment. 

Summary 

In brief, no conditions indicative of a release or threat of release of oil or hazardous 
materials or recognized environmental conditions (RECs) were identified at the site 
based on current or historical site use. Accordingly, we do not recommend any additional 
investigatory or remedial activities be conducted at the vacant, forested property (Parcel 
ID: R18-19C) located at 117 Indian Hill Street in West Newbury, Massachusetts (the 
Site) at this time. 

ASTM Environmental Site Assessments, Treatment System Design, Wetlands Permitting, LEED 
Certification Services, Landscape & Wetland Restoration 

page I 



In order to evaluate subsurface conditions at the Site, it would be necessary to 
undertake further investigation, including the collection of soil and groundwater samples 
for laboratory analysis, but we do not foresee this as a necessary activity at this time. 

The following is a brief summary of our principal findings. Additional information follows 
in the text and figures of the report. This report also contains collected photographs, 
which sometimes better illustrate site conditions. 

Executive Summary & Findings 

Based on site history information, our site inspection , and investigation of federal , state, 
and local files, we have established a reasonable description and assessment of the 
environmental condition of the site. Currently and historically, the Site has always 
remained as vacant, undeveloped land as seen in historical aerials dating back to 1938. 
The property likely remained as vacant land for many years prior to 1938, as no 
evidence of structures was observed on the property during the site reconnaissance. In 
the historical aerial dated 1938, much of the site was clear of vegetation, and the land 
appeared to function primarily as a maintained field. Following the 1938 historical aerial 
photograph, much of the field space appeared to have been abandoned and slowly 
became re-vegetated over time. Today, the southwest side of the Site is the only portion 
of the property that remains as a maintained field . The single parcel of land is identified 
by the West Newbury Assessor's Office as Map R18 Lot 19C (Figure 2). The parcel of 
land amounts to 6.1 acres. Most of the Site is comprised of upland, forested land with 
wetlands that travel through the eastern side of the property. The Site has a dense 
canopy tree layer with limited shrub species in the understory. One (1) wood road does 
travel through the southwest portion of the Site. No other roads , parking areas, or paths 
exist or access the Site. Access to the Site is only by foot from Indian Hill Street. In 
addition, there was no evidence of historical roads or trails on the parcel of land besides 
the single wood road that exists today. 

This Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment is being conducted since the land is 
proposed to be purchased by the Essex County Greenbelt Association as conservation 
land for the public to enjoy. 

In general, the site includes one (1) parcel of land in a residential property setting in 
West Newbury. The 6.1 acres of land is currently vacant, forested land that has been 
untouched for many years. During the Site reconnaissance, little to no evidence of 
human activity was observed. There was snow cover during the site reconnaissance 
which limited observations to the forest floor at the Site. No debris, miscellaneous 
materials, and/or structures were identified at the Site. On the northeast side of the Site, 
it did appear that there have been historical excavation activities in this area due to 
unnatural mounds of earth. This was the only area and evidence of excavation work at 
the Site during the site reconnaissance. After review of historical records and 
observations of current site conditions, it was evident that there has been little historical 
human impact to the Site. Based on these lines of inquiry as well as our own site 
inspection, there are no environmentally related concerns or recognized environmental 
conditions that require attention at this time. 

ASTM Environmental Site Assessments, Treatment System Design, Wetlands Permitting, LEED 
Certification Services, Landscape & Wetland Restoration 

- 2-



The following is a brief summary of our principal findings followed by conclusions and 
recommendations : 

1. A detailed site history investigation was conducted using Environmental Data 
Resource (EDR) services and by interviewing local Town departments, 
including the Board of Health, Engineering Department, Building Department, 
and Fire Prevention Office. 

2. The Town of West Newbury Assessor's Office field card for the Site indicates 
the single parcel of land to be vacant, forested land. They further identify the 
parcel as Map R 18 Lot 19C. 

3. The Site can be accessed by foot from Indian Hill Street, which borders the 
Site to the northeast. Currently there is no access drive or parking areas 
located on the property. A woods road does travel through a portion of the 
Site in the southwest corner. The woods road begins at the residential 
property located at 111 Indian Hill Street and leads to a maintained hay field 
that is partially on the southwest side of the Site and the adjacent property 
known as 115 Indian Hill Street. Reviewed historical evidence demonstrates 
that the parcel of land has not changed significantly dating back as far as 
1938. This parcel likely remained the same for many years well before 1938. 
Today the parcel remains as vacant, forested land. Some large mature 
canopy trees were located throughout the forested parcel that support these 
findings. 

4. Tyler Ferrick, Environmental Scientist/Project Manager at our firm (DeRosa 
Environmental Consulting, Inc.) conducted the site inspection on February 8, 
2021. He was able to traverse the entire Site to completely assess the 
conditions of the vacant, forested lot. During the site inspection there was 
approximately 12-18 inches of snow that covered the ground surface. The 
site inspection covered the approximate 6.1 acres (the "Site"), and the ASTM 
guidelines for site inspection were followed during the site visit. 

5. At that time, he hiked throughout the vacant, forested lot to assess the 
conditions of the Site. The topography of the Site was relatively high in 
elevation to the northeast and west. The elevation was lower on the northern 
and southern sides of the Site. In these areas freshwater streams and 
associated bordering vegetated wetlands were present. Most of the Site is 
upland soils, but there are two streams that flow through portions of the Site. 
The topography is generally high in elevation until it decreases quickly down 
to the wetlands. Due to much of the Site being upland resource area, the 
entirety of the Site could be traversed on foot. Throughout the inspection no 
debris and/or miscellaneous materials were observed on site. No 
environmental hazards were observed during the site reconnaissance. 
Additionally, no significant signs of human impact were present at the Site. 

6. The Site is not serviced by any utilities. There are municipal overhead electric 
utilities that pass along Indian Hill Street to the northeast. 

7. There are no buildings or structures that exist on the Site nor was there 
evidence of historical structures on site. Historically, there have not been any 

ASTM Environmental S ite Assessments, Treatment System Design, Wetlands Permitting, LEED 
Certification Services, Landscape & Wetland Restoration 

- 3 -



structures that have existed at the Site, according to historical aerial 
photographs reviewed dating as far back as 1938. There are no access roads 
or parking areas that access the Site. There is only a portion of a woods road 
that passes through the western side of the Site. The Site can only be 
accessed by foot from Indian Hill Street. The entire woodlot was in good 
condition. 

8. In order to evaluate soil and groundwater conditions at the Site, soil borings 
would need to be advanced and completed as groundwater monitoring wells. 
Soil and groundwater samples for laboratory analysis would then be collected 
and analyzed. However, in our professional opinion, this work is not 
necessary, since any conditions indicative of a release or threat of release of 
oil or hazardous materials and/or a recognized environmental condition were 
not identified at the site at this time, based on current and historical Site use. 

9. Based on our investigation and the current and historical Site use as vacant, 
forested land, it is our professional opinion that no conditions representing 
threats of release of oil and/or hazardous materials or any recognized 
environmental conditions, beyond those that are considered de minimis 
conditions, have been identified at the Site at this time. De minimis site 
conditions are not considered recognized environmental conditions as part of 
the ASTM 1527-13 standard. 

10. The ASTM Phase 1 ESA protocol (E-1527 -05) defines "De minimus 
condition" as 

"A condition that generally does not present a threat to human health or the 
environment and that generally would not be the subject of an enforcement action if 
brought to the attention of appropriate governmental agencies. Conditions determined to 
be de minimis conditions are not recognized environmental conditions or controlled 
recognized environmental conditions." 

Please call anytime, should you have any questions. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

DeRosa Environmental Consulting, Inc. 

Tyler Ferrick, BS 
Environmental Scientist! Project Manager 

TCF/mjd 

Michael J . DeRosa, Principal 
LSP, LEED AP, PWS 

ASTM Environmental Site Assessments, Treatment System Design, Wetlands Pem1itting, LEED 
Certification Services, Landscape & Wetland Restoration 

- 4-



TRANSFERS 



T~N095 04 26 2021 - - -CITY OF NEWBURYPORT 
Fy 2021 REC::I·./t:O 

Cl T Y CLEn t<.' ~ r; ~- F 1 !: [ 

TRANSFER/ APPROPRIATI<!ti\FREQ(:iE'ST 
ZO?.! ;· ~·R20 Ph I: SI 

Department: Department of Public Services 

Submitted by: Anthony J. Furnari, Director Date Submitted: 4/26/2021 

Transfer From: 

Account Name: Receipts Reserved for Appr. Fuel Balance: $ 155,803.91 
----~----------~----------------

Account Number: 
Amount: 

-;-2-::-7-::-22_-_5-::-96_0_0 ____________ Category: _$-'---------
$35,000.00 Trans 1/0: $ 
~~------------------------------ --'---------

Why Funds Are Available: 
This is the standard method of funding the DPS fuel and oil account. As City departments pay for gasoline, 

the funds are deposited into this reserve for appropriation account and then transferred into the fuel and oil 

expenditure account within the Highway budget t o purchase more fuel. 

Transfer To: 

Account Name: DPS Highway Fuel & Oil Balance: $ 11,804.70 
----~--~------------------------ -~-~---

Account Number: _0_1_42_1_0_0_4_-5_4_8_01 ___________ Category: _$~_7_2-'-,8_8_9_. 1_6_ 
Amount: $35,000.00 Trans 1/ 0 : $ 

~~------------------------------ --'---------
Why Funds Are Needed: 
Funds are required to buy gasoline and oil that is used by City vehicles. 

Donna D. Holaday, Mayor: Date: 

Ethan R. Manning, Auditor: Date: 

Sponsor: Charles F. Tontar, Councillor At-Large 

City Council Approval: 



APPOINTMENTS 
FIRST READING 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

APPT241_04_26_2021 

CITY 0 F NEWBURY P 0 R T RECEIVED 
CITY Cl ERt\'S OF~ ICE 

OFF I CE oF THE MAYOR r.r _. :), ::v::-·-=-. 'lA 

DoNNA D. HoLADAY, MAYOR 

6o PLEASANT STREET- P. O. Box 5 50 
NEWBURYPORT, MA 01950 

978-46 5-4413 PHONE 

978-465-4402 FAX 

,- 11 . ~·~ ·"'o ,., .. I I 
ll f'.,t~(_ hl : li 

President and Members of the City ~ 
Donna D. Holaday, Mayor \)1 

CJ/ April 20, 2021 

Re-Appointment 

I hereby reappoint, subject to your approval , the following 
named individual as a member of the Fruit Street Local 
Historic District Commission. This term will expire on May 
31, 2024. 

Bonnie Sontag 
21 Smith Street 

Newburyport, MA 01 950 



21 Smith Street 
Newburyport, MA 01950 

Mayor Donna Holaday 
City Hall 
Newburyport, MA 01950 

April 14, 2021 

Dear Mayor Holaday: 

I hereby request reappointment to the Fruit St. Local Historic District Commission as the 
Planning Board representative to the Commission. As my knowledge and experience with 
historic preservation has deepened over the years, I would like to continue to share this 
expertise with my community. It goes w ithout saying that our wea lth of historic structures 
requires constant vigilance in order to preserve these treasures for generations to come. 

Thank you for al lowing me to continue to serve on this Commission. 

Sincerely, 

Bonnie Sontag 
Bsontag21@gmail.com 
992-6261 

Attached to email message containing this letter is a short auto-biography 



Bonnie Sontag 
21 Smith Street 
Newburyport, MA 01950 
978-992-6261 
Bsontag21@gmail .com 

Before her retirement from paid employment in 2011, Bonnie Sontag helped clients to col laboratively use 
their knowledge and experience to discover shared va lues, purposes, and projects. Her expertise in 
designing and facilitating participatory change projects included engagement of participants throughout an 
extended planning process as we ll as visioning sess ions, workshops and interactive public meetings. Bonnie 
worked with public and private sector clients to produce sign ificant change by redesigning business 
processes, identifying organizational and human resource needs, and planning changes that required the 
effective use of information for enhanced product or service delivery. She coached consultants in the use of 
visua l metaphors and techniques for releasing the creative and emotional energy of their clients to produce 
actionable results. In addition to her many years as a management and organizational consultant in the 
private sector, she designed and facilitated participatory processes and events for the Boston Society of 
Architects, the city of Newburyport, MA, the town of Amesbury, MA, and the Essex National Heritage Area 
in the creation of the Essex Coastal Scenic Byway. She is a member of the Newburyport Planning Board and 
Vice-Chair of the Fruit Street Local Historic District Commission. Bonnie lived in Switzerland for 15 years and 
has worked extensively in Western Europe and other parts of the world. 



END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
BEGINNING OF REGULAR AGENDA 



APPOINTMENTS 
SECOND READING 



SECOND READING APPOINTMENTS 

• APPT239 04 12 202 1 Kevin Hunt 14 Tenth St. Veterans Agt. 

In City Council April12, 2021: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor 
Tontar. Roll call vote. 10 yes 1 absent (JE). Motion passes. 

4/l /2022 



ORDERS 



OFUDR244 04 26 2021 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED: 

AN ORDER RELATIVE TO A SPECIAL ACT TO MAKE CERTAIN MINOR AMENDMENTS 
TO THE CITY OF NEWBURYPORT HOME RULE CHARTER 

WHEREAS, Section 9- I" of the City of Newburyport Home Rule Charter provides that the charter may 
be replaced, revised or amended in accordance with any procedure made available under the state 
constitution, or by statutes enacted in accordance with the state constitution; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Newburyport seeks to make minor amendments to its home rule charter; 

THEREFORE, let it be ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport that the Mayor is 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the City: (a) to submit a Home Rule Petition to the General Court of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts to enact a Special Act for the City in the form attached hereto; (b) to act 
on behalf of the City relative to any inquiries made by the General Court concerning the proposed Special 
Act; and (c) to approve amendments to such Special Act provide that that they shall b.e consistent with 
obj ectives of the Home Rule Petition. 

Councillor Jared J. Eigerman, Ward 2 

Page 1 



A SPECIAL ACT TO MAKE CERTAIN MINOR AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY OF 
NE~URYPORTHOMERULECHARTER 

WHEREAS, Section 9-1 of the City of Newburyport Home Rule Charter provides that the charter may 
be replaced, revised or amended in accordance with any procedure made available under the state 
constitution, or by statutes enacted in accordance with the state constitution; 

WHEREAS, the City of Newburyport seeks to make minor amendments to its home rule charter; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Newburyport, representing the citizens of the 
City of Newburyport have petitioned the General Court relative to these matters; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and the House of Representatives in General 
Court assembled, and by the authority of the same as follows: 

Section 1 

The City of Newburyport Home Rule Charter is hereby amended as follows, with tklali§:ta itaheizad 
a:rd d§uh/a striekan th:¥Jugh , and additions italicized and double-underlined?: 

Sec. 1-7.- Definitions. 

Unless another meaning is clearly apparent from the manner in which the word or phrase is used, 
the following words and phrases as used in this charter shall have the following meanings: 

( 4) "City office," a position having charge of a city department including without limitation. the 
oosition ofcitv solicitor. 

(5) "City officer," when used without further qualification or description, shall mean a person having 
charge of an office or department of the city who in the exercise of the powers or duties of that 
position exercises some independent statutory authority. including without limitation. the city 
solicitor. 

Sec. 2-6. - Exercise of powers; quorum; rules. 

(c) Rules of procedure. The city council shall from time to time adopt rules regulating its procedures 
which shall be in addition to the following: 

(2) Special meetings of the city council shall be held at the call of the president or at the call of 
any six or more members, for any purpose, by causing a notice of the meeting to be delivered 
(i.Lin hand or to the place of business or residence of each member of the city council: or (ii) 
by email to each member o(the citv council with electronic confirmation o(receivt . .. . 

Page 2 



Sec. 2-9.- Ordinances and other measures. 

(a) M easures. No measure that is an ordinance or an order shall be passed fmally on the date on 
which it is introduced, except in the case of an emergency .. .. 

(c) Charter objection. On the first occasion that the question on adoption of a measure that is an 
ordinance or an order is put to the city council, if a single member present objects to the taking 
of the vote, the vote shall be postponed until the next meeting of the city council whether regular 
or special. . .. 

Sec. 3-1.- Mayor: Qualifications; term of office; compensation; prohibitions. 

(d) Prohibitions. The mayor shall hold no other city office or city employment for which a salary or 
other emolument is payable from the city treasury. No former mayor shall hold any compensated 
appointed city office or city employment. nor shall thev apvear personally before any citv agency 
as agent or attorney for anyone other than themselves. their spouse their parents. their children. 
or their siblings. until one year following the date on which the former mayor's city service has 
terminated. This provision shall not prevent a city officer or other city employee who has vacated 
a position in order to serve as mayor from returning to the same office or other position of city 
employment held at the time the position was vacated, if such position exists, but no such person 
shall be eligible for any other municipal position until at least one year after the tennination of 
service as mayor. This prohibition shall not apply to persons covered under the leave of absence 
provisions under the civil service law. Except as state law may otherwise expresslv permit. a 
/a"wver who has formerly served as mayor shall at no time represent a client in connection with a 
matter in which the lawyer participated personally and substantially while serving as mayor. 
unless the city council gives its informed consent. confirmed in writincz. to the regresentation. 

Sec. 6-5. -Capital improvement budget. 

(a) Submission. No later than April lMay 15 of each year, the mayor shall submit a capital 
improvement program to the city council. ... 

(c) Adoption. At any time after the public hearing but before ~uly 1 of each year, the city 
council shall by resolution adopt the capital improvements program with or without amendment, 
provided that each amendment must be voted separately and that any increase in the capital 
improvements program as submitted must specifically identify the method of financing proposed 
to accomplish such increase . . .. 

Page 3 



Sec. 9-7. - Uniform procedures governing multiple-member bodies. 

(b) Meeting documents and submissions. Each appointed multiple member body shall determine its 
own rules and order of business and shall provide for the keeping agendas, minutes and related 
submissions of its proceedings. All such documents shall be a public record, and certified copies 
shall be placed on file in the office of the city clerk and in tha eit} publie libraryon the website 
within fifteen days of their approval. ... 

Page 4 







ORDINANCES 



IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED: 

ODNC068_1_27 _2021 
2"d Reading 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMI;:ND SECTION VI-C OF THE N EWBURYPORT ZONIN G 
ORDINANCE AS TO THE NUMBER OF RESIDENTIAL ST RUCTURES 
PE RMITTED ON A LOT: 

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows: 

THAT Section VI-C of the Zoning Ordinance be amended pursuant to Sect ion XII-B (Adoption 
and Amendment) to read as follows, with deletions el"uble 5trieltel!l tbreush al!lel il!l belel, and 
additions double-underlined and in bold: 

VI-C- Gfte Number of residential 5tr'leture buildings per lot. 

ill Except as otherwise permitted in this Section VI -C or elsewhere in this zoning 
ordinance. only N"t mere thal!l one (1) build ing er 5trueture il!ltel!leleel fer '15e 15 a 
containing residential dwelling unit~ shall be erect ed, placed or converted to use as 
such on any l ot~ il!l a 5tlbeliui5iel!l "r el5ewhere il!l the eity u·itheut a 5peeial permit 
iuueel b~· the plal!ll!lil!l! bearEI punual!lt te )( II 7 al!lel )( H 8 o elelitiel!lally, the 
felle,.il!l! fi"e criteria mu5t be 5ati5fieel: 

ill In a zoning district where a two-family dwelling is allowed by right or by special 
permit. the planning board may grant a special permit to allow two single-family 
dwellings on a lot. subject to the following: 
(l:;}The applieati"l!l 5hall il!lel'lele· eel!leeptual by risht ele"elepmel!lt pla1!15, 5ueh u a 

eel!l"el!lti"l!lal 5tlbeliui5iel!l, t" elemel!l5trate te the plal!ll!lil!l! bearel that m"re 
thal!l "l'ie ruielel!ltial 5trmture per let i5 a rea5el!lable alterl!lati'tte te ether 
all""'eel ele"el"pmel!lt5 ef the parcel il!l"ehteel 

(:24-0 elear p11blie bel!lefit i5 eleri"eel frem the prep"5eel Ele::el"pmel!lt, il!leluelil!l! but 
l!let limiteEI tea 1"1!18 term rutrietiel!l il!l:reluil!l! el!le er mere ef the fellewii!IS: 

L==Crea_ti"l!l ef afferelable hetl5ii!IS; 

Zoning Amendment - Section VI-C (Draft Date: 2021-1-6) Page 1 o f4 



e. Censer,.atien ef si8nifieant natural resources 

ODNC068_1_27 _2021 
2"d Reading 

(3 ) "nlus the residential structures are located side by side and haue the sarne 
front yard setback, then one (1) residential strt1ett1re shall be subordinate te 
the other d;rellin8 in appearance by rneetin8 either eUhe followin8: 

a. Couerin8 at least ten (10) percent less buildin8 footprint and bt1ilt no hi8her 
than the eHistin8 durellin8; or 

0.. Leeated entirely within the ennelepe of an accessory buildin8 in eHistenee 
en the effeetiue date oUhis erdinanee 

(1 )The plan preuides adequate ways furnishin8 access to each site fer such 
buildin8, in the sarne rnanner u ether"Pise required for lots "Qt;ithin a 
s•1bdh·isi en 

(5 )The proposed residential struduru shall eernply :::ith all other applicable 
1enin8 re8ulatiens 

a. The lot and buildings shall comply with the following development 
standards: 

i. The proposed residential density shall comply with the lot area 
requirements for a two-family dwelling in the zoning district. 

ii. Both residential buildings shall comply with the setback requirements 
for principal single family buildings. 

iii. Both residential buildings shall comply with all other applicable 
zoning regulations. 

iv. The proposed buildings shall be arranged on the lot in one of the 
following manners: 

(a) The two residential buildings shall be located side-by-side and 
shall be set back no more than 10 feet further from the street 
than the average front yard setbacks for existing dwellings on 
the same block of the street on which they have frontage; or 

(b) If the lot has frontage on two streets (i.e .. the lot is a corner lot 
or a through lot). each residential building may be located 
fronting on a different street from the existing dwelling. 
provided that each building has a separate and distinct rear 
yard conforming to the rear yard requirement for the zoning 
district; or 

Zoning Amendment- Section VI-C (Draft Date: 2021-1-6) Page 2 of4 



ODNC068_1_27 _2021 
2"d Reading 

(c) One residential building may be created by conversion of an 
accessory building in existence on the effective date of this 
ordinance. such as a garage or carriage house. In such case. the 
converted building shall not be increased in height. nor 
expanded outward other than by dormers. porches or decks 
not exceeding 500 square feet in total. 

b. When the lot contains an existing building listing as "Contributing" (C) 
within the Newburyport Historic District. the application for a special permit 
shall include a proposed perpetual preservation restriction on said historic 
building approved by the Newburyport Historical Commission. 

c. Before granting a special permit under this section VI-C. the planning board 
shall fmd that all of the following criteria are met: 

i. The design and layout of buildings and open spaces on the site will be 
consistent with the established character. scale. massing and density 
of the surrounding neighborhood. 

ii. The buildings and accessory off-street parking areas will maintain a 
compatible relationship to adjacent properties in terms of location 
and design. and will not significantly reduce the privacy of adjacent 
properties. 

iii. Developing a second residential building on the lot will be equally or 
more beneficial to the neighborhood than subdividing the lot or 
providing two dwelling units in a two-family dwelling. 

e. In granting a special permit to allow two residential buildings on a lot. the 
planning board may impose building size or setback standards that are more 
restrictive than established by the ordinance for a two-family dwelling in the 
zoning district. 

f. In consideration of the increase in value represented by the granting of a 
special permit under this section VI-C. the applicant shall make a financial 
contribution to the Affordable Housing Trust Fund in an amount equal to 
$10.00 per sq.ft. of the additional second residential building on the lot. said 
payment to be made prior to the issuance of a building permit for said second 
residential building. 

AND Fl 'IUHER, THAT H~@ d@fi~iti!H~ @f "M~Itifaffiily" (Us@ 193) i~ 5iHlti@~ " E @f H~@ ~@~i~g 
OIEdi~a~e@ ~@ iffi@~d@d ~~IEs~a~t t@ 5@eti@~ XII 6 (Ad@~ti@~ a~d Affie~dm@~t) te IE@ad as 
felle ... s, "lit~ d@l@ti@~s d"t1ble striel<el!l throush ud in b"ld, a~d additie~s double 'll!lderliud 
ll!ld il!l b"ld· 

A=OO+I€lm§ er l:! w il d i-At-S=1l0==6Re-kz~ne str-tiUI:\:iro that-eeAtaiRWtflree (3)-E»: 
more Elwollin§ uAit&-.and-eStG-A-adEimena!-st¥UOO:tre eQfltatru;-tw-€! (2) et mes 

Zoning Amendment- Section VI-C (Draft Date: 2021-1-6) Page 3 of 4 



ODNC068_1_27 _2021 
2"d Reading 

dwelliRg WRits eR the same let, aAEl WRits withiR the same strwehue have oithor 
GOtlH'R€lR fl€l€lF eoiliR!iJ asseFRl91ios l9etwooR tt::lo 8welliR!iJ ~mits , €lF GammeR Wall 
Ge-nnoetors as 8ofino8 iR soeti@R II Ia , 8ofiRitioR&:-

Councillor Heather L. Shand 

In City Council January 27, 2021: 
Motion to accept the late file by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted. 
Motion to refer to Planning & Development by Councillor Khan, seconded by Councillor Shand. 
So voted. 

In City Council March 29, 2021: 
(As Amended) Motion to Waive the Rules by Councillor Vogel, seconded by Councillor Khan, Roll 
Call vote. 11 Yes. Motion to approve as amended by Councillor Shand, seconded by Councillor 
Khan. Motion to amend to strike (2)a.iv.(c) by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. 
Roll call vote. 6 No, 5 Yes (CT, SZ, JD, JM, JE). Motion fails. Motion to amend (2)a.iv.( e)(n.b. 
Should be (d) not (e)) by adding the following: Further, the Planning Board shall require, in all Special 
Permits granted under this section, that no further subdivision of the lot be permitted by Councillor Zeid, 
seconded by Councillor Tontar. Council President Eigetman steps down, Councillor Tontar President 
Pro Tempore. Roll Call vote. 11 Yes, Motion passes. Motion to amend (2)a.iv.(f))(n.b. Should be 
(e) not (f)) to $1 00 per square foot by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor Lane. Motion 
withdrawn by Councillors McCauley and Lane. Motion to amend (2)a.iv.(f) to $40 per square foot 
by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor Lane. Motion to continue to a date certain, Aptil 
12, 2021, by Councillor Eigetman, seconded by Councillor Khan. Roll call vote. 9 yes, 2 no (BV, 
JD). Motion passes. 

In City Council April12, 2021 
Motion to amend Sec VI-C (2)a.iv.(f) to $40 per square foot by Councillor McCauley, seconded by 
Councillor Lane pending. 
Motion withdrawn by Councillors McCauley and Lane. Motion to amend Sec VI-C (2)a.iv.(f) to $20 
per square foot by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor Shand. Roll call vote. 10 yes, 1 
absent (JE). Motion passes. Motion to approve amended 151 reading by Councillor McCauley, 
seconded by Councillor Lane. Roll call vote. 9 yes, 1 no (SZ), 1 absent (JE). Motion passes. 

Zoning Amendment· Section VI-C (Draft Date: 2021-1-6) Page 4 of4 



IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED: 

ODNC072 03 29 2021 
- 2"crR~ding 

March 19th, 2020 

AN TIME-LIMITED ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 11 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PARKS AND RECREATION IN 

RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows: 

Add to Chapter 11, Subsection 11-7, a New Subsection C- "COV/019 Pdrks Permitting" to read as follows: 

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the City Council, in consu ltation with the Parks Commission, establishes a fee of 
$0/hour in certain cases defined as follows: 

A) Recurring use of the fo llowing Parks: 
a. Cashman Park Ballfield 
b. Perkins Park Ba llfield 
c. Cashman Park Soccer Field 

d. Cherry Hill Soccer Field Parcel A 

e. Cherry Hill Soccer Field Parcel B 

f. Bradley Fuller Pa rk Infield 

g. Brad ley Fuller Park North Fie ld 

h. Woodman Park Multi-Use Field 
i. Cashman Park Tenn is 
j. Perkins Park Tennis 

k. Bartlet Mall Basketball Courts 
I. Cashman Park Basketball Court 

m. G.W. Brown School Playground Basketball 

n. Perkins Park Basketball Courts 
o. Woodman Park Basketball Courts 
p. Atkinson Common, Lower, Founders Field 

q. Atkinson Common, Lower, Pepe Field 

r. Atkinson Common, Lower, Hawkes Field 

s. Atkinson Common Tennis 
t. Brown Square 
u. Atkinson Common, Upper 
v. Atkinson Common, Lower 
w. Atwood/Garrison Gardens 



x. Bartlett Mall (other than athletic fields or courts) 
y. Cashman Park (other than athletic f ields or courts) 
z. Mose ley Woods Pavilion 

B) 5 or fewer weekdays in any given week 
C) No more than 2 hrs. on any given day 
D) No tents or structures of any kind, temporary or permanent, are permitted 

ODNC072 03 29 2021 
- 2"<rR~ding 

E) Requests for usage on any weekend day may not be permitted under this subsection 
F) No more than 20 participants maximum (subject to other laws and regulations promulgated by other entities) 

Any permit being requested under this specific subsection shall be made to the Parks Commission or its designee, w hich shall 

render a decision on the application within 7 days, with an application that shall include the following at minimum: 

A) Identification of the individual or organization 

B) Primary contact with contact information (including physical mailing address, phone number, and the cellphone 

number of the primary contact) 

C) A list of specific dates and time slot(s) requested 

D) A description of the proposed use 

E) A valid insurance binder with a minimum of $1M of coverage indicating that the City of New buryport is an additional 

named insured without limitation or any other additional requirement. 

For the purposes of clarity, this subsection alters fees and permitting in specific cases for a defined period of time overriding 

11-5v, 11-7 (specifi ca lly Group C) but shall not be construed to alter, eliminate, or supersede any other aspect of Chapter 11 or 

any rules promulgated by the Parks Commiss ion. 

Applicants are on notice that these are requests for fee-free usage of public Parks which belong to the residents of 

Newburyport. The Parks Commission must weigh this against any permit application and across all permit applications. In 

addition, the Parks Commission must also be mindful of congestion as permit applications are processed. 

The Parks Commission may, at its sole discret ion, approve or deny permits. Any such grant is a revocable license and, as such, 

may be revoked by the Parks Commission upon a supermajority vote during a public meeting. 

This section and any permits approved under it sha ll expire on August 31, 2021 April 30#1 dW-1 at 11:59 PM unless this 

subsection is extended by the City Council or unless any individual permit is revoked by the Parks Commission at any t ime. 

Sharif I. Zeid, Ward 1 City Councillor 

Joseph H. Devlin, At Large City Councillor 

In City Council March 29, 2021: 
Motion to approve I 51 Reading by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Devlin. Motion to move to a date 
ce1tain. April 12. 2021. by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Devlin. Roll call vote. II yes. Motion passes. 



In City Council April12, 2021: 
Motion to approve 151 reading by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Devlin pending. 

ODNC072 03 29 2021 
- 2"<r R~ding 

Motion to approve 151 reading by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Devlin. Roll call vote . l 0 yes, 1 absent 
(JE). Motion passes. 



ODNC075_04_26_2021 

CJ[llY (QJF NJE~VJBi1U(]R.. YP<Ol~ 1[' 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED: 

April 26, 2021 

AN ORDINANCE TO DESIGNATE A SAFETY ZONE ON MERRIMAC STREET ADJACENT 
TO LOWER ATKINSON COMMON 

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows: 

THAT Chapter 13 Article IV of the Code of Ordinances, City of Newburyport, Massachusetts, is 
hereby amended to read as follows, with dfJlfJtifJFHs dFJt~EJifJ stri&/(@1'1 al'1d il'1 itaU&ieefi, and 
additions double-underlined and italicized: 

DIVISION 8. - SAFETY ZONES 

Sec. 13-192. - Established. 

The City of Newburyport establishes Safety Zones under the provisions of M.G. L. c. 90, § 188 
that regulate statutory speed limits to twenty (20) miles per hour in tbese designated areas. 
Regulatory soeed limit signs, including Safety Zone speed limit signs, are required to conform to 
the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. per M.G.L c. 85 § 2. . 

Sec. 13-193, -Designated. 

The following portions of streets are located in designated safety zones: 

Extent 

Merrimac Street Moulton Street to Plummer Avenue 



Submitted, 

Councillor Christine E. Wallace 

Councillor James J. McCauley 

Councillor Charles F. Tontar 

Approve: _________ _ 
Donna D. Holaday, Mayor 

Date: ______________________ _ 

ODNC075_04_26_2021 

Attest: --------- -----
Richard B. Jones, City Clerk 



COMMITTEE ITEMS 





























































































Committee Items- April 26, 2021 
Education Committee 

1. COMM240_04_27 _2020 Memo re: SOl Submission Info 
2. COMM293_02_08_2021 Ltr. From Jane Snow 









COMM293 02 08 2021 - - -

To: 

School Committee Members 

Education Committee 

Feb 2, 2021 

I listened to the Feb. I 51 SC meeting as I saw that the renaming of the Rupert A Nock 
Middle School was on the agenda. I listened and now the suggestion is for an open meeting to 
discuss this as it is "a teachable moment''. I am asking you not do that. It is not a teachable 
moment. It will hurt 2 families, not unify the city or bring us forward to being more 
understanding of others, our actions and our words. The nom1s 80 years ago were different than 
what they are no w. To go back 80 yrs. and judge someone for an incident without truly knowing 
all the details is just as unacceptable as having a student asked to go to the back of the line. My 
heart breaks for both families. 

Mr. Cullen, wrote an article abo ut Mr. Cousins remarks at the celebration ofMattin 
Luther King Jr.' s life. lt appears Mr. Cousins did not state the name in hi s speech, but the author 
of the art icle was compelled to seek it out and usc it in his article. Mr. Cullen stated " the action 
of Rupert Nock being complicit to ovettly support racism by sending Frank' s dad to the back of 
the line to be by himself and suffer the embarra sment and indignity simply for being b1ack is 
~Jvrong and unacceptable." He judged what should happen as a result of it without being ab le to 
get al1 the deta ils, as Mr. Nock is deceased. He suggested that his name be removed from the 
Middle School. In my opinion tllis lost its teachab1e moment when names were used. 

Rather than perpetuating this, l would prefer U1e teachable moment be that Amanda 
Gorman, the nation's first ever youth poet laureate was asked to read her poem at the 
inauguration of President Joe Biden. If you missed it- here is the link: 
https :1/www .cnn .comivideos/sty1e/2021 /0 1120/amanda-gorrnan-youth-poet -laureate-fu 11-poem
bi.den-capitol-inauguration-vpx.cnn rt was a powerful poem and her deli very of it was 
incredible. This is \Vhat we should be celebrating and discussing. Something that would help to 
bring unity and move us forward. A brreat inspiration for our youth. Below is a part from the 
poem that! was partial to: 

Where a skinny Black girl 
descended from slaves and raised by a single mother 
can dream of becoming president 
only to find herself reciting for one 
And yes, we arc far from poli shed 
far from ptis tine 
but that doesn't mean we are 



striving to form a union that is perfect 
We are striving to forge a union with purpose 
To compose a country committed to all cultures, colors, characters and 
conditions of man 
And so, we lift our gazes not to what stands between us 
but what stands before us 
We close the divide because we know, to put our future fi rst, 
we must first put our differences aside 
We lay down our arms 
so we can reach out our arms 
to one another 
W c seek ham1 to none and ham1ony for all 

COMM293_02_08_2021 

Another accomplishment that should be celebrated and discussed is that we just elected 
the first woman to be Vice President of the United States and by the way she is also a woman of 
color. This is another great teaching moment that should be celebrated. On Facebook there was 
a picture of Vice President HaiTis and on the side were pictures of past Presidents. Some were 
circled with notes under that them, slavery ex isted, woman couldn't have bank accounts, school 
segregation and so on. Yes, we have made some progress. 1 do not disagree that we still have 
work to do on racism and social injustice but feel our discussion should be on today and moving 
forward. I believe that will provide us with a much better outcome than looking back and 
assigning blame to people and things 80 yrs. in the past. 

[f down the road you decide to discuss having all the schools and fields that are named 
after people changed- then have that discussion. [t should play no part in a discussion of ways to 
uni ry us and help move us forward in being more understand and k:lnder in our words and deeds. 

Thank you for taking the ti me to read and consider my request. 

Jane Snow 

9 Coffin St 



Committee Items-April 26, 2021 
Public Utilities 

APPT240 04 12 2021 - - - William G. Creelman Water/Sewer Comm 04/30/2023 



Removal from Committee Form 

Instructions: Remit to r jones@cityofnew buryport.com; pba rl<er@cityofnewburyport.com; 

cgreen@cityofnewburyport.com by Wednesday, 5 PM preceding Council meeting 

Committee Name: Committee on Public Utilities 

Committee Chair: Tontar 

Measure Identifier Measure Title Amended in Committee? 
(if yes, attach final version) 

1. APPT240_04_12_2021 Water/Sewer Commission No 

2. 

3. 

4 . 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8 . 

9 . 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

Consent Agenda 
or Regular 
Agenda? 

Consent 



APPT:?.-10 0-l 12 202 1 - . -

CrTY OF N E \Y./ B u R y p 0 R 'f -.... 
1 \1 .•• · 

0 F F I c E 0 1~ T H E M A y 0 R :· ' i ·. ;·I : ' I 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

D 0 N N A 0 ' H 0 LAD A y' MAy 0 It 

6o P L EASANT S T REET- P.O. Box 5 50 . 

NEWBURYP O RT , JV[A 01')50 

978-•1-65-441 3 PHONE 

978-465-4402 FAX 

1 

\P\\ 
P ·d d M b f I c\. A~c \\ -res1 ent an em ers o t('l~ (j'ry our.]cli 

Donna D. Holaday, Mayor \ \·. 

\) 
April 6, 202 -1 

Appointment 

I hereby appoint, subject to your approval, the following named 
individual as a member of the Water/Sewer Commission. This 
term wil l expire Apri l 30, 2023. 

Will iam G. Creelman 
129 Merrimac Street, Unit 5 

Newburypor-t, MA 01950 



129 Merrimac St ree t, Unit 5 

Newburyport, MA 01950 

April 6, 2021 

Mayor Donna D. Holaday 

Newburyport City Hall 

60 Pleasant Street 

Newburyport, MA 01950 

RE: Board of Water and Sewer Commission 

Dear Madam Mayor: 

Enclosed please find my resume for your consideration for a position on the Boa rd of t he Water 

and Sew er Commission. I have been a resident of Newburyport for the past vear, am retired 

and interested in becoming involved in the community and city government. 

My professional background is in engineering and construction. In addi tion, I have served on 

many town boards when I lived in Concord, MA. 

I wou ld welcome the opportun ity to explore the possibil ity of serving on the Board. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

/ / ({/_ / /'ll 
{/f/_/--U ,y (_-;:'(_ -(______ 

Will iam G. Creelman 

(781) 389 0908 



William Creelman 
129 Merrimac Street #5 
Newburyport, MA 01950 

crt::Jma nwlfD grna i l. c.O J:!} 

Objective: To obtain an owner's project management position utilizing my extensive constructi on 

experience both as a Construction Manager and an Owner's agent to add value to the employer. 

Builder's Licenses: Boston (ABC), Cambridge and Arlington (All Classes) 

Industry Organizations: Member of the Associated General Contractors of fVlA 

AffiliG'ltions: Wentworth Institute of Technology 
Current Member University Advisors 
Corporator 
Past Chairman, National Council 
Past Chairman, Industrial Advisory Board Building Construction 

Member of Two Capital Campaigns 
Past Member of the WAA (Wentworth Alumni Association) 
Established two Scholarship Funds 

Town of Concord !VIA: 

.a.dditional: 

Member, Harvey Wheeler Community Center Build ing Construction 
Member, Concord Elementary School Building Committee 
Member, Concord Carlisle High School Building Committee (Ph 1, 2) 
Member, Concord Free Public Library & Fowler Branch Library Building Committee 
Member, Site Study Comm. to relocate Concord Municipal Light Plant & Public Works 
Served 3 years on Concord Board of Appeals, Chairman for one year 

Past Contractor Member, Designer Selection Board, State of MA Chairman- 1 yr. 
Director, Silpro Masonry Products, Ayer MA 
Retired Captain - IVIassachusetts Arrny National Guard 
Past Instructor, BAC 
Board Member of Heading Home 
Served on Property, Finance & Execut ive Committees for Heading Home 
Board Member North Bennett Street School - Bu ilding & Finance Committees 

Education: 
Wentworth Institute of Technology 
Associate Degree, Appl ied Technology- Building Construction Technology 1964 

Northeastern University - Structural Engineering 



Professional Experience: 

ASPEN Group- June 2017- November 2019 

Served as Clerk of the Works at the Boston Homes, Dorchester, MA, a 27-unit building for severely 

handicapped residents. 
3200 Washington, Boston MA, a 76-unit apartment complex completed with 11 affordable units. 

BOND- January 2014 - May 2015 
Hired as a consultant to assist with estimating, purchasing subs, & project management related assignments 

on an $80M dormitory project at Boston University. 

North Bennett Street School -April 2012- December 2013 
Hired as Owner's Representative/Clerk of the Works. 

Participated in the selection of Construction Manager, Archit ect and various consultants on the project. 
Oversaw design and construction of an 80,000 sf facility at 150 North Street, Boston M.ll.. 
The Project h<Jd a compressed 10 month schedule and a value of $17M. 

Creelman Consi:YL1ction Consultir1g- January 2009 - 2012 
Formed my own cor.struction consulting business working for owners, <Jrchitects, & contractors assisting them 

wit h numerous construction issues. 

AJ Martini Corpora~ion - September 1995-January 2009 
Vice President/Director of Purchasing. 
Negotiated and awarded approximately $801VI subcontracts each year. 
Directed const ruction support group and supervised the estimating department. 
Managed and supervised equipment division, Dartmouth Tool. 
Visit sites as required ro review schedule, subcontractor issues, & manpower requirements. 
Member of the Executive Committee managing overal l operations for the company. 

!~. l. Jea rmotte Company ~ flliay 1993- September 1995 
Vice President/Project M anager 
Completed appra>dmately $10M worth of construcricn per year and actively managed t he estimating and field 
operations department. 

Macomber tonsl:ruction Company · July 19Zf!. ·• IVI2y 1993 
Vice President 
Started the Special Projects Division fo r th~ company and grew operations I revenue to approximately 

$151VIillion wit h profirable operations. 

Kennedy 8t Rossi -July 1937 - July 1983 
Executive Vice President 
Assisted in opera t ions of the overall management of the $30M Finn. 

Cree lman Cou ll - 1984- July 1987 
Principal 
Developed and built <l 52 Acre industrial park in Ayer MA. Creelman Coull was a merit based construction 

management firm . 


	CIP Meeting
	CONSENT AGENDA
	MINUTES_04_12_2021
	COMMUNICATIONS
	COMM320_04_26_ 2021
	COMM321_04_26_2021
	COMM322_04_26_2021
	COMM323_04_26_2021
	COMM324_04_26_2021

	TRANSFERS
	TRAN095_04_26_2021

	APPOINTMENTS 1st READING
	APPT241_04_26_2021        Bonnie Sontag 


	REGULAR AGENDA
	APPOINTMENTS 2nd READING
	ORDERS
	ORDR244_04_26_2021
	ORDR245_04_26_2021 

	ORDINANCES
	ODNC068_01_27_2021
	ODNC072_03_29_2021
	ODNC075_04_26_2021

	COMMITTEE ITEMS
	Budget & Finance
	TRAN090_04_12_2021
	TRAN091_04_12_2021 
	TRAN092_04_12_2021
	TRAN093_04_12_2021
	TRAN094_04_12_2021
	ORDR243_04_12_2021

	Education Committee
	COMM240_04_27_2020
	COMM293_02_08_2021

	Public Utilities
	APPT240_04_12_2021 William G. Creelman






